
 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – CITY HALL – 214 N. CENTER STREET 
MAY 8, 2017 

(Please turn off, or mute, all cell phones and pagers upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
 

II. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
a. Introduction of Event Center Manager, Tony Smith (Goldsboro Event Center)  
b. Neighborhood Energy Saver Program (Duke Energy) 
c. Discussion Items (Mayor Pro Tem) 

1. Diversity in the work place. 
2. A review and revision of 'employment qualifications' for all city government positions. 

a. Includes but not limited to reviewing and revising education requirements, 
experience, training in place for current job positions throughout the City of 
Goldsboro. To be completed within the next 60 days. 

3. Litter in Goldsboro. 
a. Strategic plan to combat the litter problem within the next 45 days. 

4. Establish and/or update a clear, concise whistle blower policy for City employees. 
a. We will instate a new whistleblower policy within the next 45 days. 

5. Discussion and establishment of proper structure of all boards and commissions in the City 
of Goldsboro.  

a. Making sure all boards and commissions are properly structured within the next 45 
days. 

6. Rules and regulations of Goldsboro City Government  
a. All councilmen are to have read and be ready to discuss the above referenced 

ordinances, policies and procedures as well as be ready to make changes where 
changes are needed and to enforce the policies where needed within the next 30 days. 

7. Discussion of promotion throughout the fire and police departments. 
8. The current policy provides that 'Special Population Residential Living' must be 1320 ft 

away from another residential living facility. It would be beneficial to our current heavily 
burdened special population to have access to more 'residential living' opportunities. I am 
currently proposing that we change this to 800 ft. This would not only create much needed 
jobs, it would also assist many special population residential facilities with transportation to 
various dr. appointments and activities throughout the city. 

9. The discussion of the current maintenance of grass areas throughout the City of Goldsboro 
(I.e. maintenance & upkeep). 

d. Enhanced Community Involvement Plan (City Manager)  
1. Status Update 
2. Social Media Plan Update  

e. PARTF Grant-Multi-Sports Complex (Parks and Recreation) 
f. Summer Youth Program and Summer in the Zone (Councilmember Williams)  
g. 2017-2018 Budget Summary (Finance)  
h. Resiliency Plan Discussion (City Manager) 

 

III. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER ST. 
  Invocation (Pastor Bob Fulkerson, Madison Avenue Baptist Church) 

Pledge to the Flag 
 

IV. ROLL CALL 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A.  Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of February 20, 2017 
 

VI. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Mental Health Month Proclamation 
C. Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Advisory Committee (GMGC Chairman, Byron Ash)  

 
 
 



 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
                    

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (TIME LIMIT OF 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER) 
 Request to Speak---Mr. Carl Martin  

 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call) 
D. Sale of Real Property, Tax ID #2599-56-2144, 206 Whitfield Drive as recorded in the Wayne 

County Registry (Finance) 
E. Sale of Real Property, Tax ID #2598-79-9002, 218 Winslow Circle as recorded in the Wayne 

County Registry (Finance) 
F. Budget Amendment – Parks & Recreation Swimming Pools (Finance)                          
G. Contract Award for 2017 Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing Project- Formal Bid No. 2017-002 

(Engineering) 
H. Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee and Historic District Commission Appointments 

(City Manager)  
I. CU-8-17 Jared Grantham – Southwest corner of East Walnut Street and Ormond Avenue 

(Planning) 
J. S-2-17 Meares Bluff Plantation (Revised Preliminary Subdivision Plat) (Planning) 
K. Noncontiguous Annexation Petition – Redco Properties, LLC (Faircloth and Martin Sites) –  
 Northwest corner of Wayne Memorial Drive and Tommy’s Road (30.4 Acres) (Planning) 
L. Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Electronic Sweepstakes Facilities (Planning) 
M. Site, Landscape and Building Elevation Plans Revision – State Employees’ Credit Union ATM 

(Automated Teller Machine) (Planning) 
N. Site and Landscape Plan – Stratus Properties (Planning)  
O. Property Lease Name Change Request –From Wayne Food Initiative to Little Washington 

Growing Group (Planning)  
 

X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second) 
P. CU-6-17 John Hodge (Well-Traveled Beer) – Southwest corner of South Center Street and 

Chestnut Street (Place of Entertainment with ABC Permits – Amendment) (Planning) 
Q. CU-7-17 State Electric Supply Company - West side of North George Street between Vine 

Street and Holly Street (Planning) 
 

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XII. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT AND RECOMMMENDATIONS 
 

XIII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
R. Coats and Ties Off Proclamation  
S. Peace Officers’ Memorial Day Proclamation  
T. Municipal Clerks Week Proclamation 
 
 

XIV. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XV. ADJOURN 





1 

 

 

 
 

 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY  
 
Adopted:________________ 

 

I. Purpose 

 
Social media is one of the many tools the City of Goldsboro uses to reach its target 
audiences to further the goals of the City and the missions of its departments. 

 
This policy establishes procedures related to the approval and use of City of Goldsboro social 
media sites, and City employees’ (not serving in an official capacity) use of social media sites, 
personal web pages, and blogs to ensure such usage is not detrimental to the City or other City 
employees. 
 
Content posted on the City’s social media platforms in an official capacity by City employees 
is subject to all City policies. 

 

Social media should be treated the same way as any other external publications are treated, 
and site administrators should always be aware of the City’s strategic goals as they plan and 
post information about the City. 

 
Objectives 
 
 Establish and maintain social media platforms that are responsive to public comments 

and concerns and establish a meaningful dialogue with residents. 
 Garner public interest in the City’s services, programs, events, and initiatives. 

 
II. Mission Statement 

 
The City of Goldsboro’s Marketing and Communications Department will maximize social 
media use to inform various public audiences, create a dialogue, and provide information about 
the City’s services, programs, events and initiatives to residents in a transparent and timely 
manner. 

 
III. Policy 

 
It is the policy of the City of Goldsboro that all departments developing social media 
communication platforms receive approval from the Marketing and Communications Department 
before launching their sites.   

 
IV. Approved Social Media Sites 

 
The City maintains separate social media sites in order to successfully target its messages to the 
appropriate audiences. The Marketing and Communications Department monitor’s social media 



2 

 

 

platforms to ensure there is no unapproved City social media sites. Currently approved social 
media sites for the City and its departments are listed on the City’s Intranet. 

 
V. Approval, Development, and Maintenance of City of Goldsboro Social Media 

Sites 
 

1. Written proposals for the request for official use of new social media sites must be approved 
by the Department Director and submitted to the Marketing and Communications Director, 
explaining why this tool is appropriate for their target audience prior to site development.  
 

2.    When submitting a proposal to the Marketing and Communications Department to request 
official use of a new social media site, the department must supply the following information 
via email to the Marketing and Communications Director: 

 
a. Why does current City of Goldsboro social media platforms not meet department 

needs? 

 
b. Why is this particular social media tool the appropriate outreach tool for the 

department’s target audience? 

 
c. Provide an example of the type of information and images that will be 

included on the proposed social media site. 

 
d. Who will design the proposed social media site? 

 
e. Which staff member in the department will be allowed to have access and 

provide content updates for the proposed social media site? 

f. What are the estimated number of hours that will be dedicated to maintenance 

and content management of the proposed social media site? 

 

g. Approximately how often will posts be made to the proposed social media site? 

 
h. How will a link back to the City’s official website, www.goldsboronc.gov, be 

provided on the proposed social media site? 

 
i. Provide any other information you feel will be helpful in sharing the vision for the 

proposed social media site to help Corporate Communications make an informed 

decision regarding the request for approval of the use of the proposed site. 

 

3. Each City social media site shall clearly identify the site as an official City site. 
 
4. Content posted on the City’s social media sites must reflect the City's official position, 

not an employee's personal view. 
 

5. The designated social media site content manager can be any department employee 
approved by the Department director, who has a complete understanding of this policy 
and appropriate content management and technical experience to properly maintain the 
site. 

 
 



3 

 

 

6. The administrators of City-approved social media sites are responsible for direct coordination 
with subject matter experts within the City of Goldsboro to resolve issues or requests made 
by the public concerning City-related issues. Questions, concerns and other issues not 
related to the City will be referred to the appropriate organizations, to the best of the 
administrators’ abilities. 

 
7. One designated member of the Marketing and Communications Department and 

Information Technology Department will have administrative privileges to all City-approved 
social media sites for contingency purposes. However, nothing will be posted on any 
department’s social media sites without prior approval or coordination with the appropriate 
department social media manager. 

 
8. Official City of Goldsboro social media platforms that have a single login account should be 

set up using a City email address. Examples: Twitter, Pinterest, and Instagram. 
 

9. Master account information is maintained by the Information Technology Department.  
 
10. Site administrators should take appropriate steps to minimize security risks in order to 

prevent fraud or unauthorized access to social media sites. Some suggested security 
measures and directions are available on the City’s Intranet site. 

 
11. City social media sites are subject to the North Carolina Public Records Laws and Records 

Retention Laws. All sites, when possible, must include the following disclaimer, stating 
"Correspondence to and from this site may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records 
Law and can be disclosed to third parties." 

 
12. The content and records maintenance of each City social media site shall be the 

responsibility of the department producing and using these sites. The department 
head or the department representative should contact the Information 
Technology Department to make sure backups are being performed 
appropriately on all sites.  

 
13. City social media sites must be "family-friendly." Do not delete or erase comments 

without established guidelines posted on the site, when possible. Violation of the 
following is cause for deletion of the offending material from the social media site: 

 
a. Content that promotes, fosters or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, 

creed, color, age, religion, gender, marital status, status with regard to public 
assistance, national origin, physical or mental disability or sexual orientation. 

b. Posting of or links to sexually explicit content. 
 

c. Solicitations of commerce. 
 
d. Conduct or encouragement of illegal activity. 
 
e. Spam. 
 

f. Information that may compromise the safety or security of the public or public 
systems. 

 
g. Threats or Obscenities. 
 



4 

 

 

h. Infringement on copyrights or trademarks. 
 

i. Use of personally identifiable information or personally identifiable medical 
information. 

 
14. Continued violation of any of the above-stated information will be cause for blocking or 

banning an individual from City social media sites. Only comments that violate the terms set 
forth above should be deleted. A comment may not be deleted simply because it is deemed 
to be negative. If the comment is a complaint about City services and a solution can be 
offered, a response should be given on the site so other followers can see they can come to 
our social media channels for answers and assistance. 

 
15. All statements and questions do not necessitate a response and administrators will use their 

judgement, based on guidance provided in this policy, to determine where responses are 
needed. This refers primarily to how, when and if they respond to determined detractors. 
Determined detractors are defined as persistent critics of an organization who are seemingly 
mounting their own public relations campaign against a particular topic or organization. While 
there is merit to monitoring determined detractors’ posts and responding to some of them, 
there is equal merit in not responding to rants or attempting to get into a public argument or 
debate with those types of individuals. Always remember to keep to the moral high ground 
when dealing with determined detractors on your site. This is a judgement call that falls on 
the social media site administrator. If in doubt, contact Marketing and Communications 
Department. 

 
16. Where appropriate, Information Technology (IT) Department security policies shall 

apply to all City social media sites.  
 

17. The department responsible for its social media site must secure (or set privacy settings 
for) each social media site so that only City employees assigned by the applicable 
department can post to the site. The sites can allow others, such as members of the 
public, to post comments or other visitor-generated content directly to the site. 

 

18. Crisis management; what steps to take if your account is hacked: 
 

a. Immediately notify the Information Technology Department and Marketing 
and Communications Director.  

 
b. Do not try to regain access to the account until instructed by IT.   
 

c. Change the password once access to the account is obtained.  
 
d. Delete any messages posted by hackers. 
 
e. Let followers know the site has been hacked and what is being done to correct the 

issue. 
 
19. The following should be taken into account when managing a City social media site: 
 

a. Know your audience. 
 
b. Monitor the site frequently and respond to comments/questions generally within 24 

hours. 
 



5 

 

 

c. Monitor other City of Goldsboro social media sites for situational awareness 
and potential content that can be posted on your social media site. 

 
d. Be visual. Updates should include links to imagery if possible. 
 
e. Write updates in non-press release style. 
 

f. Only identified administrators and editors will post approved content. 
 
g. The Marketing and Communications Director should be notified 

immediately of any user blocked, and then will review on a case- by- case 
basis. 

 
h. City social media administrators are encouraged to scan external media sites for 

potential use and posting of select content on sites. Posting links to positive 
stories written by external media outlets is encouraged, and appropriately 
provided the content helps the City reach its strategic communication objectives 
and is posted in a way that clearly gives the external media outlet credit for its 
product. 

 

20. Any department or division that creates and uses official City social media platforms must 
join the Communications Liaison Group. Department directors must send a designee to 
attend all meetings.  This group will meet at least quarterly and more often as needed.   

 
21. Whenever possible, provide links to the City's official website for more information, forms, 

documents or online services necessary to conduct business with the City of Goldsboro. 
 

22. City social media sites must adhere to the City’s Branding and Corporate Identity Policy 
set forth by the city’s branding policy. Any exceptions will be made on a case- by- case 
basis.  

 
VI. Use of Social Media as a City Employee on City Sites 
 
The City understands that the use of social media has become a common form of 
communication. Employees who manage City social media platforms should adhere to the 
following guidelines, realizing that their comments could have serious repercussions on the 
City’s image and ability to provide quality services to our residents: 

 
1. Use of a City e-mail address and communicating in the official capacity of a City 

position will constitute conducting City business. 
 

2. City policies, rules, regulations, and standards of conduct apply to employees who 
engage in social media activities while conducting City business. 

 
3. City departments have the option of allowing employees to participate in approved social 

media sites as part of their job duties. Department directors may allow or disallow employee 
participation in any social media activities in their departments in an official capacity. 

4. Employees representing the City government via social media sites must conduct 
themselves at all times as a respectable representative of the City and in accordance with 
all personnel administrative and operating procedures and policies. 

 

5. Employees must protect other employees’ personal privacy, the privacy of citizens and the 
information the City holds. Employees must adhere to all privacy protection laws, e.g., 



6 

 

 

HIPPA and the protection of sensitive and confidential City information. 
 

6. Employees must not disclose any information that would jeopardize the safety of City staff 
or the disclosure of personal or confidential information. 

 
7. Employees must protect sensitive information that might jeopardize ongoing City 

activities and investigations, particularly with regard to Police and Fire/Rescue 
operations. 

 
8. Employees must follow all copyright laws, public records laws, retention laws, fair use and 

financial disclosure laws and any other laws that might apply to the City or a functional area 
of the City. 

 
9. Individuals, organizations, and businesses with a social media presence can be tagged by 

City employees acting on behalf of the City related to a social media post; however, posts 
shall not promote, endorse or criticize any vendor, contractor or supplier. All social media 
content must be neutral in that regard. 

 
10. Employees will not share proprietary information that is not a matter of public record, 

which may have been gained during duties performed as a City employee. 
 

11. Employees will not use ethnic slurs, profanity, personal insults or engage in any conduct 
that would not be acceptable in the City's workplace. Additionally, employees must avoid 
comments or topics that may be considered objectionable or inflammatory. 

 
12. Employees should correct mistakes and not alter previous posts without indicating that a 

change has been made to that post. They should frame any comments or opposing views 
in a positive manner. If there are questions about how to do this, contact the Marketing and 
Communications Director for guidance. 

 
13. Employees should add value to the City through their social media interaction and 

provide worthwhile information and perspective in a respectful and professional 
manner. 

 

14. Employees are encouraged to cross-promote information from other City-sponsored social media 
sites and in some cases, from external sites, where it helps to promote the City’s objectives. 

15. Use of social media that involves any kind of criminal activity or harms the rights of 
others may result in criminal prosecution or civil liability to those harmed or both. 

 
16. No employee shall use social media as a platform to engage in any political or partisan 

activity.    

 
VII. Use of Social Media on Personal Sites 

 
The City of Goldsboro fully supports the right of employees to maintain personal web pages 
and a social media presence while not on duty. Employees are encouraged to represent 
themselves and the City in a positive manner and adhere to the City of Goldsboro’s 
personnel policy.  The following is provided as guidance for those who do maintain a 
personal social media presence:  

 
1. Do not provide or disclose the City of Goldsboro or any other organizations or individuals 

non-public, confidential, or other proprietary information. 
 



7 

 

 

2. Do not discuss work-related legal proceedings or controversies, including communications 
with the City of Goldsboro’s attorneys. 

 

3. Do not disclose confidential personal information obtained by virtue of one’s position with the 
City (i.e., department heads, supervisors, committee members, etc.).  

 
4. Personal use of social media may not violate or infringe upon the right of any other person or 

entity or constitute a criminal offense or create civil liability.  
 

5. Personal use of social media while on duty, including during breaks, must not be 
excessive such that it interferes with the employee’s work or work of others.  

 
VIII. Marketing and Communications Department/Information Technology 

 
The Marketing and Communications Department in coordination with the Information 
Technology Department will: 

 
1. Oversee the City’s social media effort, led by the Department’s social media 

manager. 
 

2. Routinely monitor content on the City's social media sites to ensure adherence to 
the Social Media Policy. Messaging should be consistent with the strategic goals of 
the City of Goldsboro. 

 
3. Conduct a performance review of all City-wide social media sites on a quarterly 

basis. Sites that do not appear to be properly maintained will be considered for 
deactivation. If it is necessary to take this step, the Marketing and Communications 
Director will coordinate directly with the appropriate Department Director prior to 
taking any action. 

 
4. Provide training to all City social media administrators regarding the terms of this 

social media policy, including their responsibilities to review content submitted for 
posting to ensure policy compliance. Training will be conducted on an as-needed 
basis as administrators change within their departments. 

 
IX. Other  

 
Employees violating this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment.  

 



1 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD 
FEBRUARY 20, 2017 

 
WORK SESSION 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work 
Session in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 
5:00 p.m. on February 20, 2017 with attendance as follows: 
 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
  Mayor Pro Tem Bevan Foster 

Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Mark Stevens  
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 
Jim Womble, Attorney 
Scott Stevens, City Manager  
Melissa Corser, City Clerk 

   Randy Guthrie, Assistant to the City Manager  
   Kaye Scott, Finance Director  

Jimmy Rowe, Planning Director 
   Jennifer Collins, Assistant Planning Director 
   Rick Fletcher, Interim Public Works Director 

Scott Barnard, Parks & Recreation Director 
Felicia Brown, Assistant Parks & Recreation Director  
Brad Hinnant, Server Database Administrator 
Mike Wagner, Interim Public Utilities Director  
Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director 
Pam Leake, Interim Human Resources Director 
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager 
Julie Metz, DGDC Director 
Allen Anderson, Chief Building Inspector  
Sherry Archibald, Paramount Theatre & GEC Director 
Tracie Davis, Communications & Marketing Director  
Wendy Walker, Arts Council of Wayne County 
Rochelle Moore, Goldsboro News-Argus 

   Lonnie Casey, Citizen  
   Shirley Edwards, Citizen 
   Carl Martin, Citizen 
   Stephen LaFleur, Citizen 
   Garren Taylor, Citizen  
   Glenn Barwick, Citizen   
   Bobby Mathis, Citizen 
   Della Mathis, Citizen  
   Yvonnia Moore, Citizen 
   Sylvia Barnes, Citizen (arrived at 5:34 p.m.) 
 
 Call to Order. The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 Invocation.  The invocation was provided by Councilmember Broadaway. 
 
 FHWA/NCFOT/City Union Station MOU and Enhancement Grant Update.  
Ms. Julie Metz shared the following information: 
 

 2016 Council Retreat Authorized Mayor to Revise Scope & Schedule of 2009 
MOU 

 New Scope Does Not Require Complete Rehabilitation for Operations 
 FHWA and NCDOT provided additional funding to 2009 Enhancement Project 

for Union Station  
 Cover eligible expenses that were part of the original 2009 Scope of Union 

Station not funded with TIGER 2013. 



2 
 

 FHWA provide $120,000, NCDOT $15,000, City $15,000 
 Eligible Expenses Include: 

o Replace Union Station Sump Pump 
o Rear Union Station Property Fencing,  
o Light Pole Banners for Walnut Streetscape Project 
o Top Paving for Union Station Drive 

 Estimates/Quotes: 
o Sump Pump:  $1,300 
o Paving of Drive:  $22,650 
o Banners:  108 x 2:  $22,392 
o Fencing:  $70,000 
o Total Estimate:  $116,342 

 FY 2016-17 Budget Share of $15,000 
 Require $11,634.20 at Estimate Amount 

 
Council agreed it was ok for staff to proceed.  
 
 City Steering Committee for Design Services of Cornerstone Commons.   Ms. 
Julie Metz presented the following information: 
 

 Schedule: 
o January 20, 2017:   Goldsboro Solicits RFQs 
o February 20, 2017:  Due Date for RFQ Submittals 
o February 21 - 28, 2017: Selection Team Reviews RFQ submittals  
o March 7 - 10, 2017:  Team Conducts Interviews 
o March 20, 2017:  Team Recommends Consultant   

    selection to Goldsboro City Council 
o March 21, 2017:    Consultant is Approved to Begin Work 
o June 15, 2017   Consultant Submits Plan for Review 
o June 15-30, 2017  Plan Review & Approvals 
o July 2017   Solicitation of Construction Bids 
o August 2017   Award Construction Bid 
o September 2017  Construction Start 
o June 2018   Construction Complete 

 Design Committee 
o City Manager/Asst. City Manager 
o Downtown Development Director 
o Paramount/Event Center Director 
o IT Director 
o Parks & Recreation Director 
o Building Maintenance Superintendent 
o Chamber President 
o Travel & Tourism Director 
o Arts Council Director 
o Assistant Planning Director 
o 1st Meeting February 22 (Wednesday) 

 
Councilmember Williams expressed interest in serving on the Design Committee. 
 
 Retreat Follow-up – Change of Public Comment Placement on the Agenda.  
Mr. Scott Stevens asked if Council would consider moving the Public Comment Period to 
follow public hearings.  Council agreed staff could proceed and report back at a later date 
if needed.   
 
 Retreat Follow-up – City Council Pay.  Ms. Kaye Scott shared she contacted 
the School of Government regarding the elected officials compensation and as always 
they were very helpful.  According to the statutes, a municipal council may fix its own 
compensation and compensation of the Mayor and other elected officials of the city by 
adoption of its annual budget each year but there is a statute that constitutes exceptions, 
the governing board cannot amend their compensation through the fiscal year.  Ms. Scott 
stated we can talk about but it could not be effective until the next budget cycle.  Ms. 



3 
 

Scott provided Council with handouts regarding Inflation Rates and a copy of the NCLM 
Salary Survey with Elected Officials Compensation sorted by population.   
 
Mayor Allen asked if that meant we could not do the insurance until the new fiscal year 
as well and Ms. Scott replied since insurance is compensation she is checking on that.  
She stated she believes both would be July 1 but she wanted to confirm.  Council agreed 
to discuss during budget time.   

 
Retreat Follow-up – 24 Hours of Peace.  Mr. Stevens stated you had a 

presentation at the Retreat, I really intended for the gentleman to eat lunch with us and 
talk with you that afternoon to see where you would like to go.  I thought it was an 
interesting idea and community outreach is good.  Mr. Stevens asked Council how they 
would like to proceed.   
 
Councilmember Broadaway stated he thought it was good discussion but before we spend 
a lot of money I would like it to be vetted by our recreation people and community 
relations department.   
 
Council discussed pricing.  Mayor Allen asked if we could get a proposal.    

 
Mayor Pro Tem Discussion Items – Conduct Unbecoming of a Police Officer 

and Officer’s in a Supervisory Role.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated in Goldsboro Police 
Department’s General Order Conduct While Off Duty “Goldsboro Police Department 
personnel are free to express themselves as private citizens on social media sites so long 
as their speech does not hinder working relationships of the department, or negatively 
reflect on the public perception of the department” and due to our recent event I think that 
we have had, the public has had; definitely been a negative effect on the public with what 
the Police Chief has done.  Even though we do not have a social media policy, it is stated 
in the General Order of the Police Department.  It is stated right there in plain sight so I 
don’t know who makes the decision on that but it was something I wanted to bring to the 
light.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Discussion Items – The Implementation of an Anti-

retaliation Statute to Protect Those Deemed as ‘Whistleblower.’  Mayor Pro Tem 
Foster stated our policy now if you have a problem with employment, you follow the 
chain of command, your supervisor to maybe the director to city manager but once it gets 
to the city manager, whatever he finds appropriate it ends there.  I think that’s a hard 
thing to decide, even if they go to Human Resources, but at the end of the day if Scott 
feels that there is nothing that should be done or that there should be something done to a 
person, I really do not think it should stop there.  I think it should come to the board and 
the board should decide as a board at that point.  The employee should be able to come to 
us and it should just not stop at Scott.  Councilmember Broadaway stated he disagreed.  
Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated he felt the process was unfair to employees because it stops 
at Scott.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated it’s just like the police chief thing, Scott feels he 
did not do anything wrong, which that is his opinion at the end of the day, but you may 
feel like this employee did not do anything wrong but this other employee did and you 
reprimand that employee.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated so I feel putting that decision is 
Scott’s hands are wrong, it should come to the board or even if we create a board or 
committee.  Councilmember Stevens stated are you asking for a board of arbitration and 
Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated yes.    
 
Mayor Allen asked Mr. Scott Stevens to share what happens today.  Mr. Stevens stated in 
our supervisory chain we have a dozen or so supervisors from me down to your entry 
level workers depending on department.  So you have a lot of supervisors out there, 
probably 80 or so that are all responsible for the supervision of their employees.  If we 
have an employee that there is disciplinary action occurring or is not performing well, it’s 
typically a conversation with the superintendent and the department head, we do an oral 
warning for the first thing in terms of performance, a written warning for the second item, 
a final written warning and then it could be termination.  So it is a four step process on 
performance, on the conduct side it is similar steps but does not have to start with an oral 
warning it can jump further than and quicker than that depending on severity.  If it gets 
beyond the oral or written warning, if we get to the point of any type of suspension, they 



4 
 

are reaching out to myself and HR to make sure we are aware and at least understanding 
of the rough outline of the situation from our side before we impact someone’s pay in 
terms of suspensions, demotions, or termination.  If they have another case that is 
unusual, they can reach out to HR or me at any time but I have not required that for oral 
or written warnings generally speaking.  Once folks have it, we give them a letter with a 
form that outlines the appeals process.  If it’s at a superintendent level it is appealed to 
the department head, if it’s at a department head level then the appeal would be to me.  
Beyond me it is court.  If an employee appeals to me, and I have heard about 6-8 appeals, 
in my time here.  I have changed the discipline sometimes after hearing the employee’s 
side of it, but it does give me the opportunity for the employee to sit with me, the 
department head and HR in a room and tell their side of the story, for me to hear the 
department head side of the story clarifying each other’s viewpoints.  I can’t say that I 
have ever totally changed and done away with the disciplinary action but I can tell you I 
have modified some once I’ve heard the employee’s side.  Beyond me, the next step 
would be to go to court. 
 
Mayor Allen asked if Mr. Stevens knew if other towns have a different process than we 
do today.  Mr. Stevens stated I’m sure they do, some towns used to have a citizen board, 
for a level beyond the manager, many have done away with that.  Mayor Allen stated he 
did not see any problem with seeing how other communities do and have further 
discussion.   
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Foster Discussion Items – A Revision to the Current Policy 
to Change Hiring Requirements for City Employees in Supervisory/Leadership 
Roles.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster asked HR to come up.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated we 
spoke during the retreat about employment and how we do not have requirements in a lot 
of our roles.  We have desirable, it most other places there are required.  We also talked 
about equivalent to a degree.  I did some research and reached out to the firm that is 
handling most, they have handled Durham, Charlotte, Clayton, I think Fayetteville, 
Spring Lake and they are working on Clinton now, about the piece of equivalent, and I 
am going to quote exactly what the man said, he did not have time to send me 
information, but he said, his name is Mr. Tom Moss, a Retired Police Chief with 
Developmental Associates, LLC stated “it is rare and also detrimental to have a police 
chief that does not have at least a Bachelor’s degree with a Master’s preferred.”  He used 
Spring Lake as an example, Spring Lake has a population of about 13,000 with 30 
officers but they required that the police chief have a Master’s degree.  He said he has 
been with the firm for seven years and in that seven years, they have never hired a police 
chief without a degree.  The problems you cause within your organization without hiring 
someone at that level without a degree is just sort of ridiculous.  So I will have that 
information at a later time if we would like to discuss it more, that’s just from my 
research I was able to do over the weekend.   
 
Councilmember Aycock asked Mayor Pro Tem Foster after he got that information if he 
would to share that with the other councilmembers before the meeting.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Foster stated I will.   
 
Councilmember Stevens stated we do have tuition assistance correct, Mr. Scott Stevens 
replied we do, up to $1,100 per year.  Councilmember Stevens stated he would hope that 
an employee could be acquiring their degree while being under employment with the city 
and it not become detrimental harm to their employment.  Mr. Scott Stevens stated it 
would not harm their employment, but again balancing school time, family time and 
work time, is challenging for many people who are working full-time.  We are not 
generally giving time for school we are helping with the cost.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated Mr. Moss stated they even have a series of test for an 
equivalent but they haven’t had to give the tests, they just don’t hire anyone without a 
degree.   
 
Ms. Leake stated most department heads go through an assessment center not just an 
interview.   
 



5 
 

Mayor Allen stated he had been doing a little looking and the one thing he noticed in 
Southern City under career, everywhere they have equivalent combination, I would like 
to get rid of desirable, I think that maybe causing some problems, so with whatever we 
do, lets change from desirable to equivalent.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated you can’t change desired to equivalent, you either have to 
go to required from desired, and equivalent honestly I think that is just in there, you 
cannot measure the equivalent to a degree because regardless of how much training you 
have while working, how many classes you have taken, no matter how long you have 
been here, you still cannot take that to a college and them hand you a degree.  You can be 
an E9 in the Air Force and been in for 20 years but you cannot be an officer without a 
degree.  We have to set a standard, we are not in the 80’s anymore where it was hard to 
acquire a degree.   
 

Cover Agenda.  Each item on the cover agenda was generally discussed.  
Additional discussion included the following: 

 
 Item L. Resolution Authorizing Execution of Award and Contract with 
Water Utility Advanced Metering Infrastructure Project.  Councilmember Williams 
asked once the equipment is installed what we would do with employees.  Ms. Scott 
stated we always need people for customer service, we will need meter readers; there 
may be two we shift to distribution and collection.   
  
 Item M. Resolution – Essential Single-Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool – 
Disaster Recovery (Assistance, Procurement, and Disbursement Policies).  
Councilmember Broadaway asked if the department had enough staffing and Ms. 
Simpson-Carter stated currently staff could handle the workload. 
 
 Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by 
Councilmember Stevens and unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session 
to discuss a personnel matter.   
 
Council came out of Closed Session.   
 
 There being no further business, the work session adjourned. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular 
session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on 
February 20, 2017 with attendance as follows: 
 
 Present:  Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
   Mayor Pro Tem Bevan Foster 

Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Mark Stevens  
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  

    
 The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Bishop Anthony Slater with Tehillah Church Ministries provided the invocation.  

The Pledge to the Flag followed.   
 
Public Comment Period.  Mayor Allen opened the public comment period and 

the following person spoke: 
 
Carl Martin, 801 S. Baines Place, Goldsboro stated I would like to thank City 

Council for the monthly reports as it helps have transparency in the City.  I also wanted to 
share a concern and a message to my Councilmember.  I am strongly opposed to City 



6 
 

Council approving the Cornerstone Commons Project as a part of the TIGER Grant No. 
12155296 for the following reasons: 

 
 We have a City park at the location of this project. 
 The project will cost the City approximately $500,000 over the next 16 months, to 

tear down what we already have and to build another bigger and better park and 
bus stop.   

 It would be in the best interest of the City to use that money to build a 
neighborhood park in the area of District 6, the fastest growing residential area in 
the City and the only District in the City that has no parks or recreation center, nor 
any plans to build one. 

 
Mr. Martin stated as for me, I say use the $500,000 to build a neighborhood park for the 
residents that live in or near District 6, rather than pumping more money into the 
redevelopment of the downtown area of the City at this time.  In that way, we in District 
6, can have more representation for our taxation by the end of 2018. 
 
No one else spoke and the Public Comment Period was closed.   
 
 Red Cross Proclamation.  Mayor Allen proclaimed March 2017 as American 
Red Cross Month.  I encourage all citizens of the City of Goldsboro and all Americans to 
support this organization and its noble humanitarian mission. 
 
Mayor Allen stated the Red Cross as you know does do a lot for our community, state 
and nation.  We do want to thank them and encourage folks to help when you can.   
 

Z-2-17 Gospel Light Temple – South side of Atlantic Avenue between 
Herman St. and Pineview Avenue (R-9 to O&I-1CD).  Public Hearing Held.  The 
applicant requests a zoning change from R-9 Residential to Office and Institutional-1 
Conditional District to allow the construction of a church and related uses.  Separate 
development plan approval would be required. 
 
 Frontage:  80 ft. 
 Depth:  155 ft. 
 Area:  12,400 sq. ft., or 0.28 acres 
 
 Surrounding Zoning: North:  R-9 and O&I-1 
    South:  R-6 Residential 
    East:  R-9 Residential 
    West:  O&I-1 
 
The property is currently vacant. 
 
The applicant requests the O&I-1 Conditional District in order to allow the construction 
of a church and related uses.  Complete development plans would have to be approved by 
the Council prior to issuance of building permits. 
 
The City’s adopted Land Use Plan designates this property for high-density residential 
development. 
 
City water and sewer services are available to the subject property. 
 
The applicant’s existing church is located immediately west of the subject property.  
They have proposed construction of a new sanctuary next door. It is unknown whether 
the existing church will remain. 
 
High-density residential and O&I-1 uses are compatible and provide a step down in 
intensity from commercial to residential. The request would be compatible with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 



7 
 

The applicant does not have specific plans at this time, however, site and landscape plans 
will have to be approved by the Council prior to development. If the rezoning to O&I-1 is 
approved, a waiver of the site plan requirement at time of rezoning would be necessary. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing and the following person spoke: 
 
 Maria Bell, 1008 Atlantic Ave, Goldsboro stated I am Vice-President to the 
Bishop Carlton Jackson.  Good evening, I would like to thank you all for having this on 
the docket tonight.  We plan to tear down this old building that has been there for over 
50-60 years and build a new facility to help accommodate our community.  My mother, 
Bertha Jackson, passed along to heaven 14 years ago, stood by the community with 
feeding, helping many people’s families, and now it is our obligation to keep this legacy 
and ministry going to support our community.  Thank you.   
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.  No action necessary. Planning 
Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on March 6, 2017. 
 

Z-3-17 Hutton Team, LLC - East side of North Berkeley Boulevard between 
Langston Drive and Ridgecrest Drive.  Public Hearing Held.  The applicant requests a 
zoning change from Office-Residence and R-16 Residential to General Business 
Conditional District.   In conjunction with this request, the applicant is requesting a 
waiver of the site plan requirement.  If the rezoning is approved, the new 
owner/developer will be required to have complete development plans approved by City 
Council prior to issuance of any building permits.   
 
A conceptual plan has been submitted for preliminary review and comment by City staff.   
 
 Frontage:  300 ft. (N. Berkeley Blvd.) 
          285 ft. (Langston Dr.) 
  
 Area:  75,500 sq. ft. or 1.7 acres 
  
 Surrounding Zoning:  North:  Shopping Center 
    South:  R-16 Residential 

East:   Office and Institutional-1 CD and R-16 Residential 
West:   Office and Institutional-1 CD and R-16 Residential  

  
If approved to GBCD, the applicant proposes the construction of a multi-tenant 
commercial strip center.  
 
Currently, each lot included within the request contains a single-family dwelling.   
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends commercial development for the property.    The 
proposed rezoning would be compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
City water and sewer are available to the property.  Subject property is not located within 
a special flood hazard area.  
 
The submitted conceptual plan indicates a 13,708 sq. ft. building which will be divided 
into four tenant spaces. 
 
Based on retail uses, at least 55 parking spaces would be required depending on the 
specific uses proposed.  The conceptual plan designates 93 spaces including four 
handicapped spaces. 
 
The developer proposes construction of a right-in, right-out driveway from Berkeley 
Boulevard and the construction of a right-turn lane. Additional access is proposed from 
Langston Drive which accesses Berkeley Boulevard through a traffic signal aligning with 
the main entrance to Berkeley Mall. 
 



8 
 

Stormwater calculations will be required for the site. A detention pond is shown to the 
rear of the development which would abut adjacent residential development to both the 
north and east. 
 
As noted previously, complete development plans including site plan, landscape plan, 
building elevation plans and commercial lighting plans will be required prior to issuance 
of any building permits for this site. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing and the following person spoke:   
 
 Jake Simko, 3555 Keith Street, Cleveland, Tennessee stated I am with Berry 
Engineers, the civil engineer on the project.  I am representing the applicant, Hutton, and 
I am available if there are any questions or discussion.   
 
No else spoke and the public hearing was closed.  No action necessary.  The Planning 
Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on March 6, 2017.  
 

Z-4-17 John R. Best - South side of Graves Drive between Berkeley 
Boulevard and Malloy Street.  Public Hearing Held.  The applicant requests a zoning 
change from Shopping Center to General Business Conditional District.   In conjunction 
with this request, the applicant is requesting a waiver of the site plan requirement.  If the 
rezoning is approved, the new owner/developer will be required to have the site plan 
approved by City Council before occupying the site. 
 
 Frontage:  100 ft. (Graves Dr.) 
 Depth:  200 ft. 
 Area:  20,000 sq. ft. or 0.46 acres 
  

Surrounding Zoning:  North:  Shopping Center and General Business 
        South:  General Business 
        East:   Shopping Center 
        West:   General Business 
  
Currently the property is occupied by an existing 4,750 sq. ft. masonry block and metal 
commercial building formerly occupied by Century Uniforms. 
 
A 20 ft. wide asphalt driveway provides access to the site from Graves Drive. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends commercial development for the property.    The 
proposed rezoning would be compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
City water and sewer are available to the property.  Subject property is not located within 
a special flood hazard area.  
 
The applicant has indicated that the property has been for sale for some time.  He 
believes the marketability of the property will be enhanced if it is zoned General Business 
Conditional District.  As noted previously, complete development plans would have to be 
approved before a new business could occupy the structure. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing.  No one spoke and the public hearing was 
closed.  No action necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for 
the Council’s meeting on March 6, 2017.  
 

Z-5-17 Charles Ginn – West side of Central Heights Road between Tommy’s 
Road and Courtney Road (R-16 and RM-NC to RM-9).  Public Hearing Held.  The 
property is currently zoned R-16 Residential with an RM-NC (Nonconforming 
Manufactured Home) Overlay. As the property has been vacant for more than six months, 
a rezoning to RM-9 (Residential Manufactured Home) will be required before another 
manufactured home may be placed on the lot. 
 

Frontage: 120 ft. 
Depth:  125 ft. 



9 
 

Area:  15,000 sq. ft., or 0.34 acres 
 

Surrounding Zoning: North: R-16 Residential/RM-NC 
    South:  R-16 Residential/RM-NC 
    East:    R-20A Residential/RM-NC 
    West:   R-16 Residential 
 
The property is currently vacant. 
 
If approved to RM-9, one manufactured home would be permitted on the property. 
 
The City’s adopted Land Use Plan designates this property for medium-density 
residential development. The requested RM-9 zone is considered medium-density and 
would be compatible with the plan. 
 
City water and sewer service is not available to serve the subject property. 
 
At one time, the property, along with land to the south, contained five dilapidated 
manufactured homes. Upon inheritance by the applicant, all were removed and one was 
replaced.  As noted previously, the subject property has been vacant for more than six 
months and will require rezoning. 
 
The RM-9 zoning district will require masonry underpinning, pitched roof and horizontal 
siding. It will be required to have working windows and no rust and have the appearance 
of a site-built home. 
 
If the rezoning is approved, the applicant plans to subdivide the property to sell the lot.  
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing, no one spoke and the public hearing was closed.  
No action necessary.  Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the 
Council’s meeting on March 6, 2017. 
 

CU-3-17 Michael Carroll - South side of East Ash Street between Lionel 
Street and Leslie Street.  Public Hearing Held.  The applicant requests a Conditional 
Use Permit to operate an electronic sweepstakes establishment.  
 

Unit Frontage:   50ft.  
Unit Depth:    75 ft.       
Unit Area:    3,750 sq. ft. 
Zone:     GB (General Business)  

 
The property is zoned General Business.  Electronic sweepstake establishments are a 
permitted use within the district only after the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit 
approved by City Council.   
 
Applicant proposes to operate the sweepstakes establishment within a tenant space of an 
existing commercial strip center.  Uses within the strip mall include tax preparation and 
insurance offices, a convenience store, and other retail sales.  The proposed tenant space 
was previously occupied for church-related purposes.  
 
The submitted floor plan shows an assembly area of approximately 3,750 square feet to 
include an office area and restrooms for patrons of the facility.  
 
The following information has been submitted with the application: 
 
 No. Employees:     2 
 Hours and Days of Operation:   8:00 a. m. to 2 a. m., Monday - Sunday 
 No. of computers:     40 
 
Required parking for the electronic sweepstake establishment is 1.5 spaces per computer 
station.  A total of 60 parking spaces are required.  There are a total of 90 available 



10 
 

parking spaces for use at the front and rear of the commercial strip center. Based on 
existing uses within the center, a total of 140 spaces would be required as follows: 
 

Retail Space (11,250 sq. ft.) =   45 spaces 
Office Space (6,000 sq. ft.) =    17 spaces 
Place of Entertainment (600 sq. ft.) =  18 spaces 
Electronic Sweepstakes (1.5 x 40) =  60 spaces 

 
A modification of required parking from 140 to 90 would be necessary. 
 
The applicant contends that most of his business would be conducted after other uses 
within the center are closed and the 60 spaces required would be excessive given that 
only 40 computers are proposed.  
 
The City’s UDO requires a separation distance of 200 ft. from residentially-zoned or 
developed property, a church or school.  There is no church or school facility located 
within 200 ft. of the proposed use.  Since residentially zoned property exists to the rear of 
the site, a modification of the 200 ft. distance requirement will be necessary. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing and the following people spoke after being 
properly sworn in: 
 

1. Michael Carroll, 63 Dole Drive, Roanoke Rapids, NC stated we want to name 
the business if it does get approved Click It.  We have several of these 
businesses in Hertford County, Halifax County.  We know there is a 
temporary restraining order in the Court of Appeals in Raleigh.  Looks like it 
is going back in the favor of, they are changing it of gift surplus and not as a 
sweepstakes because it is actually a skilled gaming, where you have to move 
up or down and it is in the Court of Appeals right now.  Every business we 
have is tight knit, we have security, put up cameras, no loitering, basically our 
clientele, the people who come to play; it is for relaxation.  We are not a go by 
night type of people that is just trying to put a hole in the wall, like some of 
these establishments that gives it a bad rep.  I’ve come to Goldsboro, seen a 
couple, went into a couple of these businesses, I do not even know if they are 
running legal.  Talked to one lady out on 117, I asked if she had a conditional 
use permit, she said no I just opened back up when they passed the law in the 
Court of Appeals that let them open back up.  I’m trying to do it the right way.  
Mr. Carroll stated we are not someone with a business that expect just to have 
anyone running in and out to make a quick buck.  We have put fountain 
machines in, we do it nice.  Mr. Carroll stated I think we could keep up the 
parking lot where it’s at looking nice and keep it cleaner on West Ash Street.   

 
2. Ernest Mansour, 1810 Evergreen Ave., Goldsboro NC stated I manage the 

property for my mother, Virginia Mansour.  I just wanted to speak in favor of 
the business going there.  In my lease I plan on requiring they have a full-time 
security guard.  He’s to not only look after the inside but make sure the 
exterior building with no people loitering.  They are going to pick up the trash 
every day.  The entire parking lot in the rear is only used by (2) cars a day 
now.  I do not feel like parking will be an issue and also there are (2) tax 
offices there, they will only be open 2-3 months a year and are closed the rest 
of the time.  Thank you.   

 
Mayor Allen asked if the convenience store was part of his.  Mr. Mansour stated that 
shopping center has a line down the middle, the right half closest to Kentucky Fried 
Chicken belongs to my mother Virginia Mansour and the left hand half belongs to my 
Aunt Juanita Mansour.  Mayor Allen asked Mr. Mansour to speak with his aunt and ask 
they work together to keep the area clean.  
 

3. Bill Keel, 801 E. Mulberry Street, Goldsboro, NC stated tonight you have 
been asked to allow an internet café within walking distance of some of the 
poorest neighborhoods of Goldsboro.  I want that to sit with you just a minute.  
Sometime in 2010 there was a survey, it’s called a survey of law enforcement 



11 
 

perceptions, a survey about internet cafes specifically.  It was commissioned 
by the Governor’s Crime Commission.  It’s 34-40 pages long, 90% of it is 
common sense, but you ought to read it.  As a matter of fact with your 
agreement, I can email you the article.  I will be referencing this some, also 
other articles in local papers or whatever.  In this brochure it talks about North 
Carolina Sheriff and Police Departments generally oppose the operation of 
internet sweepstake cafes.  Many argue that these operations contribute to the 
increasing financial hardship for low income customers and families as 
reflected in several national gambling studies.  Those are formal studies, each 
one of you have seen what they are talking about.  You have seen the same 
thing in lines to buy lottery tickets, it’s the same thing people.  The Alamance 
Times News January 2017 there’s an excerpt from there they talk about a 
number of issues with the internet cafes but the very point he makes he 
basically says they lose everything they got.  Gentlemen, we have students 
passing that area everyday walking to Goldsboro High School, parks and 
recreation facility at Herman Park, Herman Park, families with kids going to 
the health department or to the bus stop which in fact would be within the 200 
ft. range if you went parcel to parcel.  I do not know where you start the 200 
ft. range maybe it’s in the middle of that building, in the mist of all those 40 
machines or maybe it’s where that parcel ends, because he is going to use that 
parcel for his parking, because he does not meet the amount he needs and he is 
also going to use the parking in the rear.  The parking lot at the rear backs up 
to a residential area there is a home that parks their cars in that same area.  
Behind it is another residential area, so if you included the parking areas, the 
owner claims to meet its requirements, parcel to parcel, you have the health 
department, you might even have that church that’s on the corner of Leslie 
and Ash Street.  We have kids and parents walking to the Piggly Wiggly all 
the way from Bain Street, Daisy Street, Holly Street and other areas because 
that is the only grocery store within walking distance for a lot of them, a lot of 
those people do not have cars, some have cars but no money for gasoline, a lot 
use that money for gasoline for lottery tickets and sweepstake cafes.  Our 
neighbors do not need to fight through all the traffic, congestion this business 
will create on our residential streets.  And I will say one thing, I commend you 
Mayor for what you said, I’m surprised there is not a police here because I 
know if you look at the crime statistics for that area, basically that convenient 
store there and the people that own that lot, trash, loitering, and fights go on.  
People say they can stop that, the only people that can stop that is the 
Goldsboro Police Department when they come by there and as soon as they 
leave they come right back.  Mr. Keel stated so anyone who says they can stop 
loitering, they can stop crime, unless they are a police officer or a sheriff 
officer, they can’t; don’t let them tell you that.  But now let’s talk about the 
legality issues associated with sweepstake cafes.  I may go over and I 
apologize Mayor.  I ask each of you go home tonight get on the internet and 
Google sweepstake cafes and crime in North Carolina.  Just Google that, see 
how many hits you get, you will spend the next 2-3 days looking at them, or 
post something on Facebook about the issue.  What I am going to talk about 
now is a small portion of what you will get back.  A really good friend of 
mine and her husband own a business in Kinston, real profitable business, 
employ about 20 folks shared we have four sweepstakes within a mile of each 
other, one of those right next door to our business, another is like 20 ft. from a 
daycare, so what happened to the 200 ft.  You have to remember a lot of 
counties, a lot of places do not have these things on the books to stop this; we 
do.  Two of them have been robbed, the owner’s son was shot in a robbery 
about 5:00 am one morning, but it did not keep him from opening the business 
by noon.  You’ve got to realize if you get shot in the morning, open that 
business up, there has to be a draw there folks, and it is cash.  Also when they 
are shut down, for the level of criminal activity or questionable legal 
operations, they are back open in a week.  The gentleman just spoke about 
how long have we heard about the battle that’s been going on 10-15 years.  
They are illegal, well we changed the software code; they are not illegal 
anymore.   How much of our money could be spent trying to find out if they 
are legal or not; Police Department money, Sheriff’s Department money.  9 



12 
 

On Your Side investigated the legality of sweepstakes in Lenoir County in 
November 2015, they wanted to know why they were so prevalent in Lenoir 
County and banned in surrounding counties.  Lenoir County planning records 
indicated there were fourteen sweepstake cafes operating in Lenoir County, 
does anyone know how many we have, I didn’t have time to look it up.   

 
Mr. Rowe stated we have four.  Mr. Keel stated but we have rules on the book 
that could stop this?  Lenoir has fourteen.  I mention a couple of peoples’ 
names that I have a lot of regard for, you will recognize both of them, it is not 
a discouraging remark against these folks.  Both Ronnie Ingram and District 
Attorney Matt Delbridge declined to talk on camera about the issue, but I 
think both would agree if you got into a conversation with either of them, it’s 
easier to prohibit those from starting up then it is to close them down.  In 
surrounding counties like Pitt, Craven, and Onlsow, they are banned because 
the General Assembly outlawed them back in 2010 and I guess if this was a 
court of law I’d get an objection, that it has been changed since 2010.  Pitt 
County Assistant District Attorney, Caroline Lawler leads prosecutions of 
sweepstakes in her County, the sweepstakes parlors that we are seeing pop-up 
in our communities and places surrounding us are still illegal, she says.  Pitt 
County Assistant District Attorney Caroline Lawler said one of the reasons 
they shut down sweepstakes is they are hotspots for crime because they have 
large amounts of money.  By using the sweepstakes law to shut them down, it 
is actually creating a lower risk of break-ins and robberies in those 
establishments.  Again, this may have changed in the last 5 years, in another 
article, I forget the paper, state and local authorities search for sweepstakes 
businesses in Forsyth County; they notified 10-15 they were operating 
illegally.  The Associated Press in 2016, Washington, North Carolina, 
prosecutors in eastern North Carolina are threatening criminal charges against 
sweepstakes café operators the latest round in a 5 year battle between business 
owners and officials who call the games a form of gambling.  District 
Attorney Seth Edwards issued warning letters to sweepstakes operators in 
Washington, Beaufort, Tyrell, Martin and Hyde Counties.  Alcohol Law 
Enforcement Agent Russ King got involved, sent out the letters, I forget the 
Monday cut-off date, but they were all supposed to be closed, they are still 
probably operating.  State lawmakers ban internet based sweepstakes games in 
2010 after year of seeking to outlaw electronic gambling.  The State’s 
Supreme Court upheld the law in 2010.  Sweepstake operators say they’ve 
changed the software to comply with the law.  It does not take a genius to 
figure out what changes they’ve made to actually comply with the law.  
Again, back to the Governor’s Crime Commission, a study of October 2010 
shared what kind of crimes were being committed around these operations.  
Let’s name a few, this is what local police and sheriff investigations, not ALE; 
illegal gambling, drug related charges, illegal alcohol charges, fraud, robbery, 
larceny, money laundering, assault, murder, weapons violations, gambling 
addiction, larceny, theft and underage gambling.  In Alamance Time-news, 
January 2017 through its lottery the state has empowered and has in fact 
funded the ALE to go out and try to put out any business, anybody they view 
being in any way shape or form a competitor with the state lottery system.  
And in doing so, those people who are effected are acting like the mafia.  
There is really no difference in what they are doing then organized crime.  
You look at the law, find a loophole, and change your business practices to fit 
the law.  But you know it’s just not a question of location, or an imaginary 
200 ft. distance, proximity to our neighborhoods, churches, daycares, parking 
and traffic issues, its more than that.  If you look at the large preponderance of 
evidence and history associated with sweepstakes parlors, they are illegal and 
they become crime spots.  Gentlemen, let common sense take over in regards 
to this, if it flies like a duck, looks like a duck, walks like a duct, it’s probably 
a duck.  Regardless of the loopholes, many have tested and tried to keep it 
flying.  Thank you and may God grant you the wisdom and strength to deal 
with issues such as these.  Mr. Keel stated if you haven’t gathered it by now, I 
am against this.   

 



13 
 

4. Ravonda Jacobs, 301 A St, Goldsboro, NC, stated honestly please do not 
allow this internet café to come in this area.  I am definitely opposed and I am 
representing a part of the community as an internal part.  I have seen what 
these do and like he said this is one of our poorest neighborhoods.  We are 
trying to uplift that neighborhood.  The last thing we want to do is give our 
people the option to be lazy, honestly.  Probably a month ago I had some little 
children who did some work for me and I paid them.  You know what they 
asked me to do with their dollar, go buy them a lottery ticket.  Because they 
really thought that I don’t have to work for her anymore if I can spend my 
dollar on that.  Now as a whole in our community that should bring a thought 
to even shut down the other ones we have because we are bringing our people 
in this community with a mindset of laziness and that is why we are never 
going to have a better community.  So we have to take the options away.  If 
they don’t have the option to do that, they might not.  So like he said, we have 
children walking past there, people who are not…the love of money is the root 
to all evil.  And when you don’t have money you would love to have it.  I’ve 
seen men waste there whole paycheck in the internet cafes.  I’ve seen mothers 
waste their whole afternoon in internet cafes when they should be reading to 
their children.  So this is more than just a money issue, it is such an internal 
issue in our community, in our black community, economically really because 
everyone is looking for a way to get money.  So let’s maybe turn it into a 
small business center, to help teach people how to create and be entrepreneurs, 
instead of being lazy.  So please, please think about that in a different level.  It 
affects our children, what options we put in our city, what we see is what will 
be their reality.  If every corner they see I can get a quick dollar and not work, 
and not be responsible, and not be self-accountable, that’s not what we are 
looking for so let’s please consider that, before we allow money to take over.  
Thank you.   

 
5. Willie Battle, 120 Kelly Court, Goldsboro, stated I am strongly against this 

thing here.  I have seen too many folks out in my area already that go into 
these things on a payday, on a holiday, especially on Christmas.  How can you 
win something you already got?  You are going to lose it.  There on the other 
hand, they put the ATM machine in and make it so you can stay there and get 
this money again, so you are paying double again.  As for the last thing, I 
think in January there was a stabbing right there on the corner there on Lionel 
Street in the middle of the morning.  So as far as people coming there, they 
claim they have all this parking when all the other businesses are there at the 
same time, all you are asking for is a break-in, someone’s vehicle get broken 
into or somebody come out and get robbed, then you got the Police involved 
again.  We have too much going on there to be going back and forth and 
putting up these gambling houses.  Mr. Battle stated so I do not think we need 
them.  It’s in the wrong location for one thing and you’ve got people going 
straight from work going there instead of going home, losing their money, 
then they got to turn around, they gave away their utility money, part of the 
rent money, now they have to go through a change store to get some money 
and pay double money for it, then you are back in same hole.  We don’t need 
nothing like that.  People that are on skid row, leave it.  Just like some stores 
around here with beer and alcohol, they steady bouncing up, folks falling into 
this here, not working, buying drugs, selling drugs right around the same area.  
This is not the time for this.  It is going to cause a greater problem then what 
is going on.   
 

No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.  No action necessary.  The Planning 
Commission will have a recommendation for the Council meeting on March 6, 2017. 
 
 CU-4-17 Tim Gill – West side of South Berkeley Boulevard between East 
Street and Elm Street.  Public Hearing Held.  The applicant requests a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the operation of a place of entertainment with no ABC permit (video 
gaming lounge and retail sales of related products) not to include any computer-based 
sweepstakes. 
 



14 
 

 Frontage:   50 ft. 
 Depth:   45 ft. 
 Area:    2,250 sq. ft., or 0.05 acres 
 Zoning:   General Business 
 
In January, 2017, a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation of a 
computer-based sweepstakes facility was withdrawn by the owner due to opposition.  The 
current request would specifically prohibit a sweepstakes facility and would limit the use 
of the property to video gaming and sales of video game-related products. 
 
The applicant has submitted a floor plan which indicates a total of six gaming stations 
along with the following other designated areas: 
 
 Restrooms 
 Storage 
 Trading Card Game Room 
 Network Closet 
 Console Hub/Office 
 Repair Room 
 2 Vending Machines 
 Merchandise Display Cases 
 
 Hours/Days of Operation:  10:00 a. m. to 10:00 p. m. 
     (Monday through Saturday) 
 
 Number of Employees:  Up to 2 
 
The applicant proposes a number of renovations to the interior of the building including 
removal of window tint, repainting and replacing doors and light fixtures. 
 
The business plan for the operation indicates that the market to be served will be 
customers wishing to utilize gaming consoles and playing the newest video games prior 
to purchasing them.  Video games, accessories and consoles would be available for sale 
along with new and used trading card games.  In addition, the applicant plans to provide 
computer and video gaming console repair services. 
 
The applicant, who served in the United States Air Force from 2007 to 2010 is now the 
lead Computer Hardware Technician at Wayne Community College. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing and the following people spoke after being 
properly sworn in: 
 

1. Tim Gill, 101 Clint Drive, Dudley, NC stated the main thing I am here to say is I 
am not a sweepstakes at all, no gambling of any sort, at all.  We are just a bunch 
of gamers, who love gaming and want to open a place where people can go game.  
CGS was a couple of weeks ago, but that’s a one time a year thing, but I’d like a 
place that’s open every single day, practically.  I can’t stress enough this is not a 
sweepstakes.  If you have any questions for me, that’s why I am here.  Thank you. 
 

2. Lawrence Washington, Goldsboro, NC stated I personally think this is a great 
idea.  I attended the CGS thing and saw how it made downtown flourish.  I saw 
what it did for the other businesses surrounding it and that’s just a once a year 
thing.  You get a business that is now open daily that can do nothing but positive 
for the rest of the community.  I cannot see a lot of downside to it.  It is just a 
bunch of people playing games, nobody causes any problems, so a lot of people I 
saw while at CGS, there was no incident to my knowledge, everything was great.  
There’s no problems; everyone enjoyed themselves.  Why not have something 
like that opened daily.  It’s a great opportunity to do something for the 
community.  I have been here for about 25 years and the closest thing we have 
ever had in Goldsboro was an arcade in the mall and that was a really long time 
ago.  I see it as a good opportunity to start something new.  You can’t uplift the 
City if you don’t try new things right and start opening up new job opportunities 



15 
 

as well as new entertainment opportunities.  Mr. Washington stated he would like 
to see Goldsboro flourish again, the way it used to when I was younger.  
 
Mayor Allen thanked him for his comments.  Mr. Washington stated thank you 
for having me.   
 

3. Allen Young, Goldsboro, NC stated thank you for letting me speak.  I believe 
something like this can only help to push forward Goldsboro’s new positive 
upbeat image.  As he said, there is not a lot to do, that is a major complaint of a 
lot of people and there is a large market for people who play video games, who 
enjoy playing them with other people, in the same room with other people.  And I 
feel something like this could only help Goldsboro’s image.  Something else 
positive to have on our agenda that could bring in more money from outside of 
Goldsboro.  CGS brought people in from as far as Chapel Hill, Fayetteville, those 
people could be coming to this and those other local businesses would also benefit 
from that.  Thank you. 
 

4. Bobby Stocks, Goldsboro, NC stated I am a current student at Wayne Community 
College and I am also in favor of this lounge going up.  I believe it can only do 
nothing but uplift the community and give everybody, every family a place to 
come in have fun and enjoy; have family time and be socially involved within the 
community. I think this would be a great addition to Goldsboro and it will also 
help increase and probably decrease a lot of the activity in Goldsboro.  It would 
help bring people that were normally out on the streets doing something different 
to come into a place of safety, it will help bring a place of safety to families.  I can 
bring my family here, they will be protected and also have fun while doing it.  We 
have a lot of entertainment areas in Goldsboro as it is, such as Chucky Cheese that 
bring people and family together to have community time.  But that is one of the 
main reasons I would love to see this go through.  It is for the uplifting of this 
community.  Thank you so much for your time.   
 
 

5. Daniel Pasky, Goldsboro, NC stated I actually had the privilege of working with 
Tim, volunteering at Carolina Game Summit, loved the turnout, we did not have 
any incidents.  It was beautiful, the community coming together all over 
downtown, businesses working together, it was great.  If we could have a place, 
have it open all the time like I know when I was in high school we would get 
together and have land parties, playing video games all night.  It’s a lot of hassle 
to get (8) people together, move (8) consoles and (8) TVs.  But if we can just 
hangout after school and college and hang out with our friends, it’s a good place 
they can hang out.  We have not had anything like this in a while.  I look at what 
can I do in Goldsboro, I think I can go out to eat, I can go to the movies, I can go 
bowling.  There’s not a Dave and Busters here, Chucky Cheese is a little young 
for me.  I just would like a place where I could go and hang out with my friends, 
do something fun, relaxing and not dangerous.  It’s also in a safe location.  It’s 
close to the base, kids aren’t going to be hanging out in areas that are not safe.  I 
like it.  Thank you. 
 

6. Lindsay Davis, 3000 Wayne Memorial Drive, Goldsboro, NC stated I would like 
to thank you all first for being here tonight, this is really important to me and 
many others as you can tell.  I am an instructor at Wayne Community College.  I 
teach simulation and game development, meaning that I teach students how to 
make their own computer games.  And if you come to our building you would see 
there are more than enough people who want to have this here.  There are people 
that will be outside, not just our students, but people all over the campus that are 
playing video games, board games, card games and I know the school doesn’t 
exactly want us out there playing games but having a place outside of school 
would be a wonderful addition to our community itself. I know there are not many 
things to do here in Goldsboro, you can eat, go to the theatre about a month, or so, 
go to the movie theater and pay a lot of money to go there but this is something I 
think would be wonderful.  I have many students who say their parents don’t 



16 
 

understand what they are going for that they want some connection, this could be 
a place where parents and children can come together and just be together. 

 
Councilmember Stevens stated thank you Ms. Davis for coming and speaking 
being a fellow designer of video games, thank you for coming and speaking about 
Wayne Community College and the simulation game development course.   
 

7. Dustin Porter, Goldsboro, NC stated thank you for hearing me speak.  I have lived 
in Goldsboro for close to 32 years.  As far as the game community, I do believe 
this is very good and lucrative.   If you want to do anything for the age group of 
18-40, you need to go out of town, like Dave and Busters, golf carting, and I 
believe this would help kids because you can talk to them and show them how to 
play video games.  I do believe having a gaming community in this space will 
bring in a lot more customers just not from Goldsboro but from outside of town.  
So people will know Goldsboro is not just Seymour Johnson and a bowling alley.  
Thank you.   

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.  No action necessary. Planning 
Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on March 6, 2017. 
 

Planning Commission Excused. 
 

Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. City Manager, Scott A. 
Stevens, presented the Consent Agenda. All items were considered to be routine and 
could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and discussed and considered separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the 
Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote.  Councilmember 
Aycock moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items H, I, J, K, L, M, N and O be 
approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Broadaway and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the 
affirmative.  Mayor Allen declared the Consent Agenda approved as recommended. The 
items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 
 
 US 70 Business & Ash Street Designation.  Resolution Adopted.  The North 
Carolina Department of Transportation completed the Goldsboro Bypass, known as NC 
44, which extends just west of Community Drive eastwardly to the vicinity of Promise 
Land Road last summer.  On August 3, 2015 City Council adopted a resolution 
requesting that NCDOT designate NC 44 as US 70 Bypass.  Upon its completion in May, 
2016 the new freeway is now designated as US 70 Bypass.           
 
At this time, the City of Goldsboro would like to request that the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation consider renaming existing US 70 as US 70 “Business” 
and existing US 70 Business as “Ash Street”. 
 
The renaming of these facilities will not affect addresses of businesses or citizens along 
these corridors.  City staff will work with NCDOT to coordinate appropriate signage for 
these corridors if renamed.       
 
Staff recommended the Council adopted the following entitled Resolution requesting that 
the North Carolina Department of Transportation rename existing US 70 as US 70 
Business and existing US 70 Business as Ash Street in Goldsboro, North Carolina.  
Consent Agenda Approval.  Broadaway/Aycock (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 “RESOLUTION REQUESTING THAT THE NORTH 
CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RENAME EXISTING US 70 
AS 70 BUSINESS AND EXISTING US 70 BUSINESS AS ASH STREET IN 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Sale of Surplus Real Property, Tax ID #2599-93-1784, 215 E. Elm Street, as 
recorded in the Wayne County Registry.  Offers Accepted.  In December 2016, offers 
were made to the City of Goldsboro for said property.  Ms. Jerri J. Johnson and Mr. 



17 
 

Terrence Byrdsong, Jr., adjacent property owners, have offered to pay the City the sum of 
$1.00 each to acquire this property.    
 
The City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne acquired this property in April 2007 
through foreclosure.  At the January 17, 2017 County Commissioners’ meeting, the 
Commissioners declared the substandard property as surplus and authorized the sale.   
The property’s tax value is listed as $2,550.    
 
Per General Assembly of North Carolina, Session Law 2004-94, allows the sale of 
substandard surplus real property owned alone by the City or jointly owned by the City 
and by Wayne County by offering it to the adjoining property owners for $1.00.   
 
It is recommended that Ms. Johnson and Mr. Byrdsong’s offers be accepted for 215 E. 
Elm Street. 
  
Staff recommended Council accept the offers of Jerri Johnson and Terrence Byrdsong, Jr. 
in the amount of $1.00 each and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a deed on 
behalf of the City of Goldsboro.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Broadaway/Aycock (7 
Ayes) 
 

Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of an Installment Financing 
Contract to Finance a Portion of the Costs of a Multi-Sports Complex.  Resolution 
Adopted.   The City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne entered into an 
intergovernmental agreement on March 6, 2015 and amended on October 20, 2015 
regarding a $3,000,000 loan.  The funding would be used for the multi-sports complex on 
the property owned by Seymour Johnson AFB.   
 
The City and County have agreed to enter into an installment financing contract under the 
North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 160A, Article 3, Section 20, in the amount of 
$3,000,000.  The County has agreed to loan the $3,000,000 for a portion of the costs 
associated with the multi-sports project.  This loan will bear interest at a rate of 1.5% and 
be payable over 15 years.   
 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the 
Mayor, City Manager, Finance Director and City Clerk to sign and execute all the 
necessary documents needed with the County of Wayne.  Consent Agenda Approval.  
Broadaway/Aycock (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-11 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF AN INSTALLMENT FINANCING CONTRACT TO FINANCE A 
PORTION OF THE COSTS OF A MULTI-SPORTS COMPLEX” 
 

Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of an Installment Financing 
Contract to Finance an Advanced Metering Infrastructure System and Certain 
Vehicles and Equipment.  Resolution Adopted.  When Council adopted the FY 2016-17 
budget, several vehicles were characterized to be purchased through installment financing.  
Also, the City has been pursuing a fully automated meter reading system.  The City desires 
to finance the acquisition of the vehicles and equipment along with the water meter reading 
system.   
 
The following vehicles were listed to be purchased by an installment financing agreement 
pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-20: 
 
 

Equipment  Department            Tot al  C ost 

1. Utility  Vehicle  Garage  40,000

2. Crew Cab Pick‐Up  Streets & Stms.  29,000

3. Skid  Steer  Streets & Stms.  75,000

4. Tractor with Loader 
B k

Streets & Stms.  30,000

5. Front  End Loader  Solid Waste  145,000

6. Aerial Fire  Truck  Fire  Dept.    1,318,669

7. Equipment  for  Truck  Fire  Dept.  169,051



18 
 

8. Pick‐Up  Truck  Parks & Rec.  27,000

9. Passenger  Van  Parks & Rec.  60,000

0
10. Excavator  Dist. & Coll.  193,000

11. Utility  Vehicle  Dist. & Coll.  45,000

12. Utility  Vehicle  Dist. & Coll.  35,000

3
Tot al    $  2,166,720

	
Since these vehicles were needed before financing could be finalized, reimbursement 
resolutions were adopted by Council at previous meetings. 
 
Requests for Proposals (RFP’s) were mailed to over 40 institutions on January 25, 2017 
with 14 different financial institutions responding on February 8, 2017.  The RFP included 
loan amount of $7,600,000, which includes cost of issuance/bank fees: 
   

Vehicle/Equipment  $2,206,000 
 Automatic Meter Reading $5,394,000 
 Total Loan Request    $7,600,000 
 
A listing of the proposals is available.   
 
While the majority of the institutions submitted proposals consistent with the RFP, Bank 
of America Public Capital Corporation offered the lowest combined interest rate for both 
the vehicles/equipment and AMI automatic meter reading system.  Bank of America 
presented a rate of 1.8265% for vehicles/equipment over a term of 59 months and 2.4856% 
for the AMI project over a 15-year term.   The combined rate for both financing is 2.3615%. 
 
Davenport, City’s Financial Advisor, has reviewed the proposals and recommends the 
lowest interest rate for the combined financing and the lowest debt service on the 
installment purchase financing.  By selecting Bank of America’s bid, the City locks in the 
lowest cost of financing while maintaining the ability to prepay the loan in the future if 
needed. 
 
Financing of this project will be authorized through the utilization of an installment 
contract authorized under North Carolina General Statute 160A-20.  The Local 
Government Commission will meet for approval on this financing at its March 7th meeting. 

 
Staff recommended the City Council accepts the proposal from Bank of America Public 
Capital Corporation with the combined interest rate of 2.3615 subject to the Local  
Government Commission’s approval on March 7, 2016. 
 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the 
Mayor, City Manager, Finance Director and City Clerk to sign and execute all the 
necessary documents required for the installment financing contract with Bank of 
America Public Capital Corporation.   Consent Agenda Approval.  Broadaway/Aycock (7 
Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-12 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF AN INSTALLMENT FINANCING CONTRACT TO FINANCE AN 
ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE SYSTEM AND CERTAIN 
VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT” 
 

Resolution Authorizing Execution of Award and Contract with Water Utility 
Advanced Metering Infrastructure Project.  Resolution Adopted.  The City has been 
working with MeterSys in pursuing a fully-automated meter reading system for the past 
18 months.  This system will eliminate more than 15,000 manual meter reads each 
month.  It will enhance the City’s efforts to promote resource conservation, operational 
efficiencies and customer service. 
 
On November 28, 2016, the City received five completed responses to its requests for 
proposals.  The selection committee, City staff and MeterSys consultants, evaluated each 
bidder’s submittal and rated each one on the following criteria: 



19 
 

 
1. Proposal Design 
2. Migrateable Endpoint 
3. Network Design 
4. MDMS and Customer Portal 
5. System Functional Expandability/Future Technologies 
6. Equipment Specifications/Warranty  
7. Installation Qualifications 
8. Similar Projects/Experience 
9. Pricing 

 
The Committee shortlisted two (2) bidders, Ferguson/Sensus and HD Supply/Neptune.  
Interviews along with further due diligence efforts were performed. A listing of the 
proposals are attached for Council’s information.   
 
Based on the results of the shortlisting process, the selection committee along with 
MeterSys is recommending Ferguson/Sensus for the new Water Utility Advanced 
Metering Infrastructure project.  MeterSys recommends approval to proceed to finalized 
contract based on the following: 
 

1. Base Price Full AMI (FlexNet)  $4,691,000 
2. 7.5% Contingency           352,000 

    (Pit Rehab., System Enhancements) 
3. Professional Services                 257,000 

    (Project Management, Software & Network) 
 
This price reflects Sensus accuStream meters, which based on MeterSys’ analysis of 
performance, warranty, cost and read accuracy seems to be the best overall option for the 
City.  It has been calculated that the City should gain a payback on capital between 7-8 
years while benefitting from 15 or more years of high performing, efficient meter 
reading.  Also, it was recommended that MeterSys continue to provide support services 
to the City for procurement and AMI solution for water meters per master agreement. 
  
It is recommended the following entitled Resolution be adopted authorizing the Mayor, 
City Manager, Finance Director and City Clerk to sign and execute contract with 
Ferguson/Sensus for the Water Utility Advanced Metering Infrastructure Project.    
Consent Agenda Approval.  Broadaway/Aycock (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO.  2017-13 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR, CITY 
MANAGER, FINANCE DIRECTOR AND CITY CLERK TO SIGN A CONTRACT 
FOR WATER UTILITY ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT” 
 

Resolution – Essential Single-Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool – Disaster 
Recovery (Assistance, Procurement, and Disbursement Policies).  Resolution 
Adopted.  Hurricane Matthew was one of the strongest hurricanes to form in the Atlantic 
Ocean in a decade.  Through the Disaster Recovery Act of 2016, the General Assembly 
has authorized an allocation of $20 million to the North Carolina Housing Finance 
Agency (NCHFA) through the North Carolina Housing Trust Fund to help many of those 
in our state who have suffered from this disaster.  The City of Goldsboro applied for the 
first cycle of available grant funds in January 2017 from NCHFA through the Essential 
Single-Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool – Disaster Recovery (ESFRLP-DR) in the 
amount of $150,000.  This grant is to be in conjunction with the City’s Community 
Development Block Grant Program. 
 
NCHFA has awarded the City in this first cycle of available funding in the amount of 
$150,000 through the Essential Single-Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool – Disaster 
Recovery (ESFRLP-DR) to assist eligible owner-occupied homes affected by Hurricane 
Matthew with repair/modification up to $40,000 per home.  The time period of this grant 
is 30 months starting January 24, 2017 and ending on June 30, 2019. 
 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following Resolution approving the ESFRLPDR 
Assistance, Procurement, and Disbursement Policies to conduct this Urgent Repair 



20 
 

Program in conjunction with the City’s Community Development Block Grant Program 
and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the ESFRLPDR Assistance, 
Procurement, and Disbursement Policies.  Consent Agenda Approval.  
Broadaway/Aycock (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-14 “RESOLUTION APPROVING ESFRLP-DR 
ASSISTANCE, PROCUREMENT, AND DISBURSEMENT POLICIES 
RESOLUTION” 
 
 Stoney Creek Sewer Outfall Rehabilitation FBR No. 2016-001- Change 
Order No.2.  Resolution Adopted.  Staff requested Insituform Technologies, the 
contractor for this project, to provide costs for additional rehabilitation of segments of 
24" sewer pipe upstream of the original scope of the Stoney Creek Sewer Outfall Rehab. 
Insituform Technologies submitted costs for additional rehabilitation work shown below: 
 
Description       Total Price 
Preliminary CCTV Inspection    $ 9,440.00  
24-Inch CIPP Liner (350 LF)     $ 81,900.00 
5' Diameter Rehab w/ Epoxy Liner    $ 16,537.50 
Bypass        $ 309,639.70 
Traffic Control      $ 3,548.90 
Manhole Invert Opened for CIPP    $ 887.20 
Remove Suction MH Ring/Cover    $ 2,957.40 
Remove Tuberculation (Ductile Pipe)   $ 4,732.00 
24-Inch CIPP Liner (1200 LF)    $ 126,960.00 
Total Change Order No.2     $ 556,602.70 
Original Contract Amount     $2,674,612.50 
Previous Contract Amount w/C.O. No. 1   $2,844,378.09 
New Contract Amount     $3,400,980.79 
 
The Stoney Creek Sewer Outfall Rehabilitation is funded by a Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund Loan in the amount of $2,674,612.50. We have reviewed the financing 
of Change Order No. 2 with the Division of Water Infrastructure and determined that the 
City of Goldsboro is eligible for additional SFR funding up to 10%. 
 
It is recommended the City Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing 
the City Manager to execute a change order totaling $556,602.70 with Insituform 
Technologies for Stoney Creek Sewer Outfall Rehab.  Consent Agenda Approval.  
Broadaway/Aycock (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-15 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE A CHANGE ORDER WITH INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES FOR 
STONEY CREEK SEWER OUTFALL REHABILITATION FORMAL BID REQUEST 
NO. 2016-001” 
 

Monthly Reports.  Accepted as Information.  The various departmental reports 
for the month of January, 2017 were submitted for the Council’s approval.  It was 
recommended that Council accept the reports as information.  Consent Agenda Approval.  
Broadaway/Aycock (7 Ayes) 
 
 End of Consent Agenda.   
 

FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant Agreement, Grant No. 12155296.  
Approved.  The City of Goldsboro applied for funding through the Transportation 
Investment Generating Economic Recovery Grant Program in the 2016 cycle.  The City 
received notification in July, 2016 of a $5,000,000 award to support the following 
projects:  1) Center Street Streetscape Project; 2 blocks of Center Street from Spruce 
Street to Elm Street, 2) Cornerstone Commons Project; demolition of the existing space 
and construction of an expanded space with amenities, 3) GWTA Transit Center 
Concourse Project; construction of a concourse at the transit center, 4) Wayfinding 
Signage Project; fabrication and installation of wayfinding signs within the Goldsboro 
MPO area. 



21 
 

 
Once notified of the successful award, the United States Department of Transportation 
assigned our project to the Region IV Federal Transit Administration to administer the 
grant on their behalf.  City staff has been working with FTA and the Office of the 
Secretary of Transportation to meet and prepare all the necessary documents to permit us 
to move forward with the receipt of the funds and begin construction.  The final 
necessary document is the attached Grant Agreement between the City of Goldsboro and 
the United States Department of Transportation (DOT).   
 
The agreement states expectations in terms of responsibilities, timelines, benchmarks, 
reporting requirements, scope of work, source and use of funds, and cause for 
termination/expiration and modifications.  Highlights of the Agreement include the 
following:   
 

1) The City of Goldsboro (Grantee) is being granted $5,000,000 by USDOT to 
complete the above mentioned projects. 

2) The City of Goldsboro has committed 26% of the proposed project costs 
equaling to $1,755,751.   

3) If there are any cost savings, or if the contract award is under the engineer’s 
estimate, the City of Goldsboro funding amount and percentage share may be 
reduced, provided the City’s share of the costs may not be reduced below 
20%. 

4) Quarterly Progress Reports are due beginning August 17, 2017 and will 
continue through and beyond the completion of the project ending December 
2024. 

5) USDOT reserves the right to terminate the Agreement if the following 
benchmarks are not met: 
a) The Grantee fails to begin construction before January 2018;  
b) The Grantee fails to begin expenditure of Grant funds by March 2017; 

6) Funds made available under this Agreement, once obligated, are available for 
liquidation and adjustment through September 30, 2024. 
 

The following City staff are identified in the Agreement with certain roles:  Randy 
Guthrie, Primary Contact; Julie Metz, Secondary Contact, Kaye Scott, TrAMS Contact.  
TrAMS is the federal program mechanism for the grant funds.  Scott Stevens is also 
authorized to access and utilize TrAMS.  These City staff persons and the City Attorney 
have reviewed the Agreement thoroughly and in its entirety. 
  
Councilmember Stevens made a motion to authorize the Mayor to sign this grant 
agreement, on behalf of the City of Goldsboro, between the City of Goldsboro (Grantee) 
and the United States Department of Transportation permitting the City to execute the 
TIGER VIII Grant.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Broadaway.  Those 
voting in favor of the motion included Mayor Allen, Councilmembers Steven, 
Broadaway, and Ham.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster, Councilmembers Williams and Aycock 
voted against the motion.  Mayor Allen declared the motion passed with a 4:3 vote. 
 
 City Manager’s Report.  Mr. Scott Stevens stated first he would like to 
recognize we lost a member of our family, Major Jay Memmelaar, last week.  A 25 year 
employee died suddenly last week, he was an integral part of the Police Department.  I 
would ask that you keep his family and the department in your thoughts and prayers.  I 
would also like to mention the Community Affairs Awards Banquet, it is February 28th at 
6:30 p.m. at the Goldsboro Event Center.  If someone is interested in attending they can 
call to register at 919-580-4359.   
 
 City Attorney’s Report.  No report.   
 
 Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendations.    
 

Councilmember Williams stated I think we had a very good Retreat pertaining to 
a lot of things happening in our City.  We got a chance to move forward with CALEA, 
we have some summer youth jobs coming down for this summer, just a lot of good 
opportunities coming here.  It is good to see all the beautiful faces out here to support us. 



22 
 

 
 Councilmember Broadaway stated no comment.   
 
 Councilmember Stevens stated I would like to thank those who came out to 
support the game industry and how it is growing.  It is not just about playing games, it’s 
about emerging technology swarming our world.  I would also like to say thank you to 
Officer Childs and Sgt. Foster; there was an incident in my neighborhood and they 
knocked on my door to let me know they had apprehended someone who was trying to 
break into homes.  They were letting me know they were doing neighborhood policing.  
So I would like to say thank you Officer Childs and Sgt. Foster, I appreciate that so 
much. 
 Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated no comment.  
 
 Councilmember Ham stated no comment. 
 
 Councilmember Aycock stated no comment. 
 
 Mayor Allen stated one thing I would like to mention as you know February is 
Black History Month, about two weeks ago a couple of citizens, Jay and Amie Bauer 
called and came into to see me.  They were a meeting at the museum and have been 
working on a project for a couple of years.  Back in March of 1865, there was a 135th 
Regiment of the US Colored Troops formed in Goldsboro.  On Thursday, February 23rd 
the Curator of the North Carolina Museum of History, Mr. Earl James, is going to be here 
at the library and will be doing a presentation on this troop.  It’s at the Goldsboro Library 
on Thursday beginning at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Allen also asked everyone to keep the 
Memmelaar family in their thoughts and prayers, it is always a great loss when you lose 
someone and especially someone who has been here 25 years and only 49 years old.  We 
had no idea he was not going to be here with us anymore.  I do say the take away from 
that is don’t put off tomorrow what you want done today, because tomorrow may never 
come.  We thank everyone for coming out tonight.   
   

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m. 
 
  
 
       ___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen 
       Mayor 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Corser, MMC   
       City Clerk  



Item B



  Item No.__D___ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

MAY 8, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 
 
SUBJECT: Sale of Real Property, Tax ID #2599-56-2144, 206 Whitfield Drive 

as recorded in the Wayne County Registry. 
 
BACKGROUND: On March 31, 2017, Chester Brown offered to pay the City of 

Goldsboro the sum of $1,800.00 for the purchase of the above 
described property and made a bid deposit of $90.00 payable to the 
City of Goldsboro.    
 
The City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne acquired 206 
Whitfield Drive in August 2005.  At their April 18, 2017 meeting, 
the County Commissioners agreed to convey their share of this 
property to the City of Goldsboro with the stipulation that the City 
and County equally share the expenses of $79.38.  

 
DISCUSSION: Standard property will be offered for sale in accordance with the 

provisions of the G.S. 160A-266, provided however, the minimum 
sales price will be at least fifty percent (50%) of the property’s tax 
value.  The property’s tax value for the land is $3,600. An 
advertisement appeared in the Goldsboro News-Argus on April 6, 
2017.  The ten (10) day upset bid period expired on April 26, 2017, 
with no counter-offers received after this bid. 
 
The attorney fees associated with transferring the deed will be paid 
by the buyer.  If no other fees are incurred prior to closing, the City 
and County’s portion from this property would be $860.31 each. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: By motion, accept the offer from Mr. Chester Brown in the amount 

of $1,800 and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a 
deed on behalf of the City of Goldsboro. 

 
 
Date: ________________ __________________________________ 
 Kaye Scott, Finance Director 
 
Date: _______________ __________________________________ 
 Scott Stevens, City Manager  



W CHESTNUT ST

WHITFIELD DR

MILL
ER

 A
VE

Wayne County/City of Goldsboro Surplus Property
Whitfield  Drive

PIN# 2599-56-2144

60 '

.100 0 10050 Feet

(13
0 ')

(11
2 ')

50.77 '



  Item No.__E___ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

MAY 8, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 
 
SUBJECT: Sale of Real Property, Tax ID #2598-79-9002, 218 Winslow Circle 

as recorded in the Wayne County Registry. 
 
BACKGROUND: On April 3, 2017, Hezekiah Jones, III offered to pay the City of 

Goldsboro the sum of $3,500.00 for the purchase of the above 
described property and made a bid deposit of $194.50 payable to 
the City of Goldsboro.    
 
The City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne acquired 218 
Winslow Circle in June 2016.  At their May 2, 2017 meeting, the 
County Commissioners agreed to convey their share of this 
property to the City of Goldsboro with the stipulation that the City 
and County equally share the expenses of $79.38.  

 
DISCUSSION: Standard property will be offered for sale in accordance with the 

provisions of the G.S. 160A-266, provided however, the minimum 
sales price will be at least fifty percent (50%) of the property’s tax 
value.  The property’s tax value for the land is $7,000. An 
advertisement appeared in the Goldsboro News-Argus on April 9, 
2017.  The ten (10) day upset bid period expired on April 19, 2017, 
with no counter-offers received after this bid. 
 
The attorney fees associated with transferring the deed will be paid 
by the buyer.  If no other fees are incurred prior to closing, the City 
and County’s portion from this property would be $1,710.31 each. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: By motion, accept the offer from Mr. Hezekiah Jones, III in the 

amount of $3,500 and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute a deed on behalf of the City of Goldsboro. 

 
 
Date: ________________ __________________________________ 
 Kaye Scott, Finance Director 
 
Date: _______________ __________________________________ 
 Scott Stevens, City Manager  



SIMPSON ST

GRAHAM ST
WINSLOW CIR

Wayne County/City of Goldsboro Surplus Property
218 Winslow Cirlce
PIN# 2598-79-9002

.100 0 10050 Feet

70 
'

70 
'

130 '

130 '



Item  ____F___ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

MAY 8, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment – Parks & Recreation Swimming 
Pools                           

 
BACKGROUND: At the April 17, 2017 meeting, Council was presented an 

update on the operations of the Mina Weil and Peacock 
Pools.  Council made the decision to operate the pools this 
summer through the Parks and Recreation Department. 

 
DISCUSSION:   Council instructed the Parks and Recreation Director to 

increase staffing levels for lifeguards and staff to operate 
both pools this summer.  Since funding was not included in 
the current fiscal year’s budget, it is necessary to appropriate 
funds for salaries and operational supplies for the pools.  It 
is estimated that funding for salaries would be $11,000 and 
$4,000 for operational supplies.  
 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the attached ordinance be adopted 
decreasing the unassigned fund balance by $15,000 for the 
staffing and operations of the Mina Weil and Peacock Pools 
for FY 16-17. 

 
 
Date:  ____________________  ____________________________________ 
      Kaye Scott, Finance Director  
 
 
Date:  _____________________  ____________________________________ 
      Scott Stevens, City Manager 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2017- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE  
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2016-17 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro will be operating the Mina Weil and Peacock 
Pools; and 

 
WHEREAS, the estimated cost for salaries and operations until June 30, 2017 is 

$15,000; and 
 

 WHEREAS, since the current fiscal year’s budget does not contain sufficient 
monies to meet these obligations, the City of Goldsboro needs to appropriate the 
additional amount of $15,000 from the General Fund. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-17 be amended by: 
 

1. Decreasing the Unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund in the amount 
of $15,000. 
 

2. Increasing the line item entitled “Salaries – Part-Time” (11-7460-1260) in the 
Parks and Recreation’s budget of the General Fund in the amount of $11,000. 

 
3. Increasing the line item entitled “Operational Supplies” (11-7460-2993) in the 

Parks and Recreation’s budget of the General Fund in the amount of $4,000. 
 

4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________ 
day of ___________________ 2017. 

 
 
 
Approved as to form only:   Reviewed by: 
 
 
_______________________   _______________________ 
City Attorney     City Manager 
 



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

MAY 8, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 

ITEM ___ _ 

Contract Award for 2017 Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing 
Project- Formal Bid No. 2017-002 

On Monday, May 1, 2017 three sealed bids were received for 
the 2017 Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing Project for the 
City of Goldsboro. 

Turner Asphalt, Inc. of Raleigh, NC submitted the low bid for 
the 2017 Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing for a total cost of 
$2,267,947.06. The bids received for this project are tabulated 
as follows: 

Name of Bidder 
Turner Asphalt, Inc. 
Raleigh, NC 

Barnhill Contracting Company 
Kinston, NC 

S. T. Wooten Corporation 
Wilson, NC 

Amount of Bid 
$2,267,947.06 

$2,283,491.35 

$2,534,432.45 

The proposed work consists of approximately 155,919 square 
yards of bituminous concrete resurfacing and approximately 
140,347 square yards of milling asphalt pavement for sections 
of N. Alabama Avenue, Astor Court, Beech Street, Best 
Street, Cedar Road, S. Claiborne Street, Cross Street, Daniel 
Drive, Dupont Circle, Gloucester Road, Harding Drive, N. 
Hillcrest Drive, Hillcrest Place, Hilldale Lane, E. Holly Street, 
Hunters Creek Drive, N. John Street, Laurel Street, Madison 
Avenue, Marion Drive, Neil Street, Oak Street, Overbrook 
Road, Peachtree Street, Pearson Street, Pine Needles Road, 
Pineview A venue, Rockefeller Court, Seaboard Street, W. 
Seymour Drive, S. Slocumb Street, Tampa Street, Tuskeegee 
Street, Vanderbilt Circle, and Wayne Avenue (see attached 
list). 

The bids for this project have been reviewed by the 
Engineering Department, checked for accuracy, and found to 
be in order. We have also reviewed the financing of this 

G



project with the Finance Director and determined that funds 
are available in street improvement bonds. 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, adopt the attached resolution authorizing the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute a contract in the amount of 
$2,267,947.06 with Turner Asphalt, Inc. for the 2017 
Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing Project. 

ome: ziJA_,,z c£ \\lQJ! ~ 
GUYM An<Iet;m;,:E.~eer 

Date: --------
Scott A. Stevens, City Manager 



2017 STREET RESURFACING 
Street From To 
N. Alabama Avenue Ash Street Oak Street 
Astor Court Holly Street End 
Beech Street Lionel Street Jefferson A venue 
Best Street Elm Street Evergreen A venue 
S. Best Street Elm Street Mimosa Street 
S. Best Street Juniper Street Stephens Street 
Cedar Road N. Berkeley Boulevard Violeta Street 
S. Claiborne Street Pine Street Elm Street 
S. Claiborne Street Elm Street Mimosa Street 
S. Claiborne Street Harris Street Berry Street 
Cross Street N. US 117 Hwy. Bus. Railroad Tracks 
Cross Street Railroad Tracks N. Neil Street 
Daniel Drive 400 Daniel Drive Paxton Place 
Daniel Drive Paxton Place Violeta Street 
Dupont Circle Oak Street Oak Street 
Gloucester Road Lockhaven Drive Glen Oak Drive 
Harding Drive New Hope Road Kay Dee Street 
N. Hillcrest Drive Dawn Circle Pine Needles Road 
Hillcrest Place Pine Needles Road End 
Hilldale Lane Overbrook Road Hillcrest Drive 
E. Holly Street N. William Street Leslie Street 
E. Holly Street Audubon A venue Madison A venue 
Hunters Creek Drive Wintergreen Place 308 Hunters Ck. Dr. 
N. John Street Ash Street Beech Street 
Laurel Street Madison A venue Claiborne Street 
Madison A venue Beech Street Edgerton Street 
Marion Drive Smith Drive 216 Marion Drive 
N. Neil Street Cross Street E. Neil Street 
E. Neil Street N. Neil Street Tuskeegee Street 
Neil Street Tuskeegee Street William Street 
Oak Street Rockefeller Court Holly Street 
Oak Street George Street James Street 
Overbrook Road Peachtree Street Hilldale Lane 
Peachtree Street Hillcrest Drive Overbrook Road 
Pearson Street George Street James Street 
Pine Needles Road Hillcrest Drive End 
S. Pineview A venue Pine Street Evergreen A venue 
N. Pineview A venue Ash Street Walnut Street 
Rockefeller Court Oak Street End 
Seaboard Street Riway Street End 
W. Seymour Drive Slocumb Street Myers A venue 
S. Slocumb Street Walnut Street Spruce Street 
S. Slocumb Street Elm Street Olivia Lane 
Tampa Street Ninth Street End Maintenance 
Tuskeegee Street Neil Street Dillard Street 
Vanderbilt Circle Oak Street Oak Street 
Wayne Avenue John Street Slocumb Street 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION A WARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A CONTRACT FOR 2017 BITUMINOUS CONCRETE RESURFACING 

FORMAL BID REQUEST NO. 2017-002 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has heretofore found it in the 
public interest to make certain street resurfacing improvements; and 

WHEREAS, sealed bids were received on May 1, 2017 for the 2017 Bituminous 
Concrete Resurfacing Project; and 

WHEREAS, the low bid was submitted by Turner Asphalt, Inc. of Raleigh, North 
Carolina in the amount of$2,267,947.06; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro 
to accept the low bid and award the contract to Turner Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of 
$2,267,947.06 for the 2017 Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing Project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a 
contract with Turner Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of $2,267,947.06 for the 2017 
Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing Project; 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this day 
of ,2017. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

City Attorney City Manager 



         Item ___H___ 
 
 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO  
AGENDA MEMORANDUM  

MAY 8, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING  
 
 

SUBJECT:         Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee and Historic District 
Commission Appointments 

 
BACKGROUND:   There are currently several vacancies on Advisory Boards  
    and Commissions.  Citizen involvement is vital to the  
    performance of City government.  It is necessary that  
    additional appointments be made in an effort to fill these  
    vacancies.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Recommendations for appointments were requested from  

the respective Boards and Commissions.  Applications were also 
solicited from the general public at large.  The following 
individuals have expressed a desire to serve on the indicated 
Boards or Commissions: 
 
Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee 
Wells Warner 
 
Historic District Commission 
Debbie Smith (Alternate) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:         It is recommended that the City Council by motion, adopt the 

attached Resolution appointing members to the Goldsboro 
Municipal Golf Course Committee and Historic District 
Commission.  

.  
     
 
 
 
Date:  ________________  ____________________________ 
     City Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017- _____ 
  

RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS 
TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 

 WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City 
government; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the terms of several members on the City's Advisory Boards and 
Commissions have expired or been vacated due to members moving or resigning; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the following distinguished citizens have expressed a desire to serve upon 
the indicated Boards or Commissions; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 

1.  The following individuals be and are hereby appointed to the specified Boards and 
Commissions.  The terms of the appointees shall expire on the dates indicated: 
 
  

Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee 
 1st Term Appointee: 
 Mr. Wells Warner   Term Expires       12-31-2020 
 

Historic District Commission—Alternate Position    
 Debbie Smith      Term Expires   12-31-2021 
  

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 8th day of May, 
2017. 
 
 
 

Approved as to Form Only:                             Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________          _________________________________ 
City Attorney                                                  City Manager 



I







J











K











L









M











N







Item No. ___O ____ 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

May 8, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

SUBJECT: Property Lease Name Change Request –From 
Wayne Food Initiative to Little Washington 
Growing Group 

 
BACKGROUND: The City of Goldsboro owns a number of 

properties located within Washington Park off of 
South George Street. Wayne Food Initiative 
submitted a request to allow the use of four City-
owned lots for gardening purposes back in 2009. 
These lots are located at the southeast corner of 
McDaniel Avenue and Oxley Avenue. 

 
    Parcel ID No. -12-2599-41-9787 

                 12-2599-51-0798 
                 12-2599-51-1883 

     12-2599-51-2833 
 

It was proposed that the City lease the vacant 
property at a cost of $1.00 per year provided 
Wayne Food Initiative maintains the property in 
an acceptable manner. The lease provided for a 
60-day cancellation notice by either party. 

Staff recommended that Council adopt the 
Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk 
to execute a lease agreement for four parcels of 
land within Washington Park to Wayne Food 
Initiative which was executed by the Mayor on 
July 9, 2009.   

DISCUSSION: Now Ms. Cheryl Alston member of the Wayne 
Food Initiative is requesting that the name on the 
current lease agreement (Wayne Food Initiative) 
be changed to Little Washington Growing Group. 

 



Ms. Alston indicated that the agreement for the 
Wayne Food Initiative is a group of city and 
county partners who have a mission to help 
provide food in this food desert.  The Little 
Washington Growing Group is an active partner 
of the Wayne Food Initiative and has the same 
mission and has become a 501 C3 group.  
 
We have contacted the USDA office for help in 
getting a removable greenhouse on the property 
that we currently lease from the City.  We need 
the name Wayne Food Initiative changed to the 
Little Washington Growing Group in order to get 
the green house.   
 
Since the property is located in a flood hazard 
area the Engineering Department has reviewed 
this request and will submit the necessary 
Floodplain Development Permit to the State for 
approval. 

 
Staff recommends that Council adopt the attached 
Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk 
to execute a revised lease agreement for four 
parcels of land within Washington Park to Little 
Washington Growing Group as requested by Ms. 
Alston. 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, accept the recommendation of the 
Staff and adopt the attached Resolution 
authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a 
revised lease changing the name from Wayne 
Food Initiative to Little Washington Growing 
Group.     

 
Date:  ______________________  ____________________________________ 
      Planning Director 
 
 
 
Date:  ______________________  ____________________________________ 
      City Manager 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -   
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LEASE OF CERTAIN PROPERTY 

OWNED BY THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
TO LITTLE WASHINGTON GROWING GROUP 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns a number of properties located within 
Washington Park; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City to maintain this property and such maintenance is 
an expense to the City; and   
 
 WHEREAS, Wayne Food Initiative requested that they be allowed to lease four lots on 
the southeast corner of McDaniel Avenue and Oxley Avenue in order to maintain a garden; and 
 

WHEREAS, Wayne Food Initiative has maintained these lots as a garden since 2009 with 
no complaints being registered with the City concerning said properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, Wayne Food Initiative is requesting that the name on the existing lease be 

changed from Wayne Food Initiative to Little Washington Growing Group; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 
 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to amend the lease agreement for the 
following properties located within Washington Park between the City of Goldsboro 
and Wayne Food Initiative by changing the name shown on the lease from Wayne 
Food Initiative to Little Washington Growing Group.  The rental fee for this property 
is $1.00 per year. 
 

Wayne County Tax Identification Nos. 
 

12-2599-41-9787 
12-2599-51-0798 
12-2599-51-1883 
12-2599-51-2833 

 
2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption this 

________ day of _____________________________, 2017. 
 
 
Approved as to Form Only:    Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
City Attorney      City Manager 
 



SUNNYSOUTHST

WAYNE AVE
S US 117 BYP

BE
EM

S
ST

BAY ST

BRICK ST

CRUMP ST

BE
TH

UN
E 

AV
E

CARVER BLVD

OXLEY AVE

S 
GE

OR
GE

 S
T

ANDERSON DRDE
PR

IES
T 

ST

SPAULDING AVE

ROBSON CIR

MC
DA

NIE
L A

VE

.300 0 300150 Feet

LEASE OF PROPERTY
LITTLE WASHINGTON GROWING GROUP

225'+-

250'+-

328'+-

25
5'+

-



SUNNYSOUTHST

WAYNE AVE
S US 117 BYP

BE
EM

S
ST

BAY ST

BRICK ST

CRUMP ST

BE
TH

UN
E 

AV
E

CARVER BLVD

OXLEY AVE

S 
GE

OR
GE

 S
T

ANDERSON DRDE
PR

IES
T 

ST

SPAULDING AVE

ROBSON CIR

MC
DA

NIE
L A

VE

.300 0 300150 Feet

LEASE OF PROPERTY
LITTLE WASHINGTON GROWING GROUP

225'+-

250'+-

328'+-

25
5'+

-



P













Q













Item R



Item S



Item T


	Agenda 5-8-17
	ws Item d.1 Enhanced Community Involvement Plan
	ws Item d.2 COG SOCIAL MEDIA Policy Draft
	Item A  Minutes 02 20 17
	Item B  Mental Health Month Proclamation
	Item D-1 206 Whitfield Drive 5-8-17
	Item D-2 City-County Surplus Property 206 Whitfield Drive
	Item E-1  218 Winslow Circle 5-8-17
	Item E-2  218 Winslow Circle - Surplus property
	Item F-1 Pools Memo
	Item F-2  ORDINANCE Pools 5-8-17
	Item G  Bituminous Concrete Resurfacing  - Contract Award
	Item H  Boards and Commissions Memo
	Item I  CU-8-17 Jared Grantham Memo
	Item J  S-2-17 Meareas Bluff Memo
	Item K  Redco Prop. Memo
	Item L  Zoning Ord. Amen. Memo
	Item M  SECU Site and Land. Memo
	Item N  Stratus Properties Memo
	Item O-1 Wayne Food Init. Lease  Name Change
	Item O-2  Little Washington Growing Group Name Change Resolution 2017
	Item O-3 LW GROW GROUP AERIAL
	Item O-4 LW GROWING GROUP SITE MAP
	Item P  CU-6-17 John Hodge Memo
	Item Q  CU-7-17 State Electric Memo
	Item R  Coats and Ties Off Proclamation
	Item S  Peace Officers Memorial Day Proclamation
	Item T  Municipal Clerk Week Proclamation

